
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., June 24, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Friday, June 17, 2022 
 2nd Printing – Wednesday, June 22, 2022 

            

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – June 06, 2022 

                           

                                                            

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                                                      

                                                                                 

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2022-TA-001 ……………………………………………                     1 - 2 

Resolution Authorizing off-island travel for the ROSS Service  

Coordinator to attend the 2022 National Service Coordinator  

Conference on August 14-17, 2022 in Anaheim, California. 

2. Resolution No. FY2022-011 ……………………………………………………                3 - 12 

Resolution Approving the Write-off of Tenant Accounts Receivable 

3. Intent of Award                

RFP#GHURA-COCC-022-001; Legal Counsel Services 

 

 

 

 V.    CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

1. ROSS Program & Status Report ……………………………………………………            13 - 29 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 VI.  GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Government of Guam’s Ethics Training on June 30, 2022  

from 8 a.m. to 12 p.m. @ the New Sinajana Mayors Fine Arts Center 

2. Executive Director’s Report 

3.   Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Friday, July 15, 2022 

 @ 12:00 p.m. 

    
 Commissioners will attend the next scheduled GHURA BOC meeting via: 
 
   Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman               □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner                         □ Video Conference          □ In-person 
   Anisia Delia, Commissioner                              □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Nate Sanchez, Commissioner                           □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Emilia Rice, Commissioner                               □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner          □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
 
   Acknowledged by Chairman Rivera _______     Date: _________                                                                 
                                                                             

 

 VII.   ADJOURNMENT   







 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 1 of 15 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., June 6, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the 
Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting 
was called to order at 12:02 P.M. Friday, June 6, 2022, at the GHURA Sinajana Main 
Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Rivera. He indicated that 7 members of 
the Board of Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and that the meeting 
would proceed as scheduled. 

 
PRESENT: 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman (via zoom) 
Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman  
(in person) 
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner  
(in person) 
Anisia Delia, Commissioner  
(via zoom) 
Nate Sanchez, Commissioner  
(In person) 
Emilia Rice, Commissioner (via zoom) 
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner 
(via zoom) 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Anthony Perez, Esq. (via zoom) 
 

 
MANAGEMENT & STAFF: 
Elizabeth Napoli, Executive Director 
(Acting) 
Audrey Aguon, Deputy Director (Acting) 
Sonny Perez, A/E Manager 
Katherine Taitano, CD Chief Planner 
Kim Bersamin, HR Administrator 
Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager 
Frances Danieli, Controller (Acting) 
 
PUBLIC:  
 
 

 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

           1st Printing – Friday, May 27, 2022 
          2nd Printing – Saturday, June 4, 2022 

          ACKNOWLEDGED by the board.  

 

 

 

 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 2 of 15 

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES  

[040/22] Vice Chairwoman Guzman moved to approve the minutes of the June 6,                      

2022 BOC meeting. Commissioner Ishizaki seconded the motion. There were no 

objections by the other board members. Motion 

passed.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

          

IV.  NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2022-009; Resolution Approving the Above-Step 

Recruitment for Jerricho C. Garcia, General Accounting Supervisor (RPE). 

 

[041/22] Director Napoli stated the following: 

 

• Mr. Jerricho C. Garcia submitted his request to Executive Management to 

petition the GHURA Board of Commissioners for an above the minimum step 

recruitment for the position of General Accounting Supervisor based on 

exceptional qualifications. 

• The BOC had previously approved the above step recruitment for Mr. Garcia, 

however, Mr. Garcia was not able to complete his probationary period as 

critical vacancies arose with the Accountant III position and the untimely 

passing of the General Accounting supervisor. 

• Mr. Garcia’s exceptional qualifications for the General Accounting Supervisor 

position include the following: 

1. Certified Public Accountant- August 2020 

2. Undergraduate degree- Bachelors in Business Administration in 

Accounting- Graduated with honors from the University of Guam. 

3. Masters of Science in Accounting (MSA) 

4. Over (1) year and (2) months of auditing experience with Deloitte and 

Touche as an Associate I working with over 15 company accounts 

5. US Army, Active Duty- Accounting Operations, Budgeting, and Fiscal 

6. Possesses “Internal Auditing” skills 

7. Mr. Garcia has implemented new processes to increase efficiency and 

effectiveness in the GHURA Fiscal Division 

8. Played an integral role in the timely submission of the 2020 audit 

9. Performed (88) bank reconciliations to help GHURA become current 

with in the monthly reconciliation process. 

10. Mr. Garcia has no doubt elevated the level of efficiency and 

effectiveness of the Fiscal Division. 

• Management believes the compensation package of salary and benefits is 

competitive with the private sector considering the level of responsibility 

that the General Accounting Supervisor position carries and now 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 3 of 15 

 

respectfully requests an Above-Step Recruitment of Mr. Jerricho C. Garcia, 

PG4-8E, $76,401.00 p/a; $36.73 p/h. 

• Director Napoli respectfully requested that the board approve the above-

step recruitment for Mr. Jerricho Garcia.  

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about whether the payment adjustment that was 

previously discussed was adequate for Mr. Garcia’s needs. Mrs. Kim Bersamin, HR 

Administrator, stated the following: 

• In December, when the topic was discussed, GHURA knew that the pay 

adjustment would bring it closer, but that critical positions would remain way 

below.  

• Critical positions such as engineers and accountants, especially those in 

supervisory positions would have to be brought before the board with above-

step recruitment on a case-by-case basis.  

• The job is big. The $76,000 is fair in terms of what is expected of this new 

position.  

• When there are recruitment difficulties and you have the qualifications, there 

had to be negotiations.  

• HR feels that Mr. Garcia has the potential to be a part of GHURA’s succession 

plan, moving forward due to his ability to pick up so quickly on institutional 

knowledge.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about why Mr. Garcia was not able to complete his 

probationary period. Mrs. Bersamin stated the following: 

• Within a (6) month period, GHURA lost an Accountant III to the federal sector.  

• The process to fill that position began  

• The passing of a higher-level supervisor posed another challenge, the positions 

were very hard to fill.  

• Even after running the announcement for the position for (6) weeks, only (2) 

candidates applied.  

Commissioner Sanchez added that he concurred with Mrs. Bersamin’s sentiments in 

that the challenges faced by HR are a growing concern due to candidates being more 

interested in pursuing careers in the private sector rather than working for the 

government. He thanked Mrs. Bersamin for her continued efforts and contributions at 

GHURA.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman added that the pay adjustment that was approved in the past 

helped somewhat, but inquired about whether there would be a potential for the board 

to see more above-step recruitment resolutions in the future.   

 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 4 of 15 

 

Mrs. Bersamin stated the following: 

• Yes, but only for key positions that need negotiations due to recruitment 

difficulty and their are exceptional qualifications 

• There is a potential for one other above-step position request and that would be 

for an Engineer III 

• For years, the recruitment for Mr. Albert Santos’s succession plan had been 

difficult, but luckily she was able to recruit Mr. Sonny Perez.  

• Requests for above-step limited and are scrutinized.  

• Board requests are only for critical and recruitment difficulty 

Director Napoli stated that Mr. Garcia applied for the Accountant III position and was 

able to prove that he was capable of doing the job and of taking on the added 

responsibilities of that level. When the authority needed a General Accountant 

Supervisor, Mr. Garcia once again applied for the position, as he had been working 

closely with the late General Accounting Supervisor, Mr. Emil Rabino, and learned very 

quickly.  

Ms. Katherine Taitano added that she had the opportunity to watch Mr. Garcia and Mr. 

Rabino work together and witnessed Mr. Garcia’s impeccable skillset. Mr. Garcia has 

exhibited the ability to understand and comprehend her division’s needs. He gets the 

programmatic side of it and communicates effectively with her team.  

Mrs. Frances Danieli, Acting Controller, stated that Mr. Garcia has excellent work ethics. 

He seeks answers when necessary and always follows procedures. He is always 

working at improving daily processes that allow for much smoother transitions with 

day-to-day operations. In the case of Mr. Garcia, he has the ability to train the 

Accounting II position and assist in addressing and improving the processes in the 

Fiscal Division. He really works hard.  

Commissioner Sanchez stated that it is a very in depth and meticulous job. Sometimes 

it feels like a chore; it isn’t easy, and the hours are long. There's little margin for errors 

or mistakes, especially since we're dealing with federal funds.  

Chairman Rivera asked about the details of Mr. Garcia’s supervisory role. Ms. Taitano 

stated the supervisory role consists of an accountant I on the RP&E side to take care of 

capital, community planning and development grants.  An accountant I to assist with 

the capital funds and program grants. And an accounting tech. All work with respect to 

the CPD side of the house. Those are all the programs that are running under the 

political system that we have set up for the grants management. 

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about whether GHURA was still in need of another 

accountant. Mrs. Bersamin indicated that another accountant III position is needed. She 

added that an announcement for the position was extended for two more weeks, 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 5 of 15 

 

running a total of six weeks. She added that there are a handful of applicants, and she 

works continuously to find the best talent possible.  

There were no further discussions. 

Chairman Rivera thanked the commissioners for the discussion and added that Mr. 

Garcia’s reputation precedes him. He made waves because he was one of the first 

students to pass the CPA exam before even graduating with his degree. He's a talent. 

And not only is he a CPA, but he's also CGFM. Hopefully, he sees a career with GHURA 

and decides to stay with us long term and grow the next generation of talent and pass 

on those skill sets. I do appreciate the candor of the group in asking the tough questions 

regarding the above step hires. Chairman Rivera opened the floor for a motion for 

Resolution FY 2022-009.  

[042/22] Commissioner Ishizaki moved to approve the above-step recruitment 

for the General Accounting Supervisory position for Mr. Jerricho C. Garcia for 

Resolution No. FY2022-009. Commissioner Sanchez seconded the motion. There 

were no objections by the other board members. The motion passed.  

 

Director Napoli requested that auditor, Mr. Dan Fitzgerald be moved from item #6 to 

the next item to be presented to the board. Chairman Rivera did not object to the 

change.  

[043/22] Vice Chair Guzman moved to amend the agenda to entertain Mr. 

Fitzgerald’s presentation. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion.  There were 

no objections by the other board members. The motion passed and Director 

Napoli was allowed to proceed. 

2. FY2021 Audit Report- Mr. Dan Fitzgerald, Deloitte & Touche 

 

[044/22] Acting Director Napoli stated that Mr. Dan Fitzgerald was from the 

Auditing firm Deloitte & Touche. She added that the firm conducted GHURA’s 

FY2021 audit and was completed and released by the Office of Public Accountability. 

She further stated that she requested that Mr. Fitzgerald present a final brief of the 

audit to the board.   

 

Mr. Dan Fitzgerald stated the following: 

• Guam’s financial accountability is not unique in that it pertains to almost 

every entity on Guam and the U.S. 

• There just aren’t enough accounting people, resulting in a substantial 

increase in prices associated with accountants.  

• GHURA’s financial statements are a completely different situation 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 6 of 15 

 

• About 70% of GHURA’s audit is an audit of compliance of HUD requirements 

and 30% is on financial statements 

• GHURA is a bifurcated entity, loyalties are to (2) different entities., 

Government of Guam and HUD. 

• This balance is reflected in the financial statements. 

• GHURA’s financial statements are straightforward. Most of the work is on the 

HUD compliance side  

• HUD is more structured than any other agency 

• December of 2021, GHURA had planned to have a completed audit on 

February 28, 2022. The plan was on track and moving forward. 

• In December of 2021, GHURA lost (2) key people who played an integral part 

in GHURA’s operations and in the audit process  

• Existing personnel had to step in. This compounded the timing of the 

processes resulting in delays 

• In Washington, D.C., GHURA’s case manager turnover rate is high. Each time 

a case manager changes, GHURA’s financial statements must be restated. The 

new case manager must then try to understand these statements as it impacts 

other entities, and this causes delays.  

• GHURA could not overcome the loss of the (2) integral people and the change 

of the case manager in Washington, D.C. 

• One of GHURA’s financial requirements is that financial statements must be 

approved by HUD and uploaded.  

• New Case manager had many questions regarding when the restatements 

transpired. This continues to be the case for GHURA.  

• The training and learning processes are long especially with GHURA. One 

must learn the unique accounting exercised by GHURA. It seemed to be on 

track to complete the audit on time.  

• Directors Topasna and Napoli have communicated the challenges that 

GHURA faces, and this helped in developing the goal to be classified as low 

risk. 

• The reason GHURA did not become low risk is solely because of the change 

out in Washington, D.C.  

• GHURA has really come a long way, it has worked hard on tackling major 

compliance issues and continued to consult with its auditors. 

• GHURA’s audit is about compliance with all the myriad of rules and 

regulations imposed by HUD. It is a lot of hard work.  

• GHURA’s financial statements are fine.  

• GHURA’s challenge is basically retention and because of the change out of 

Washington’s desk officer, HUD is still trying to understand why GHURA’s 

financial statements were incorrect for a number of years.  



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 7 of 15 

 

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about the auditor providing the board with a bulleted point 

list of issues of deficiencies.  

Mr. Fitzgerald stated that the only deficiency that GHURA cannot counter in the audit process 

is getting the financial statements uploaded to HUD because they have many questions.  The 

financial statements from several years ago represented an anomaly.  The federal agencies do 

not like anomalies. So GHURA’s only issue is the financial statement uploads because that is 

out of GHURA’s control, it is controlled by Washington. GHURA did everything it was supposed 

to do to be able to achieve a low-risk status. Unfortunately, HUD had many questions, and they 

only had a certain amount of time available. It's taken a very long time, otherwise, GHURA 

would have been classified as low risk. He added that GHURA has, however, come a very long 

way. 

Director Napoli added that GHURA has communicated with Jesse Wu from HUD Honolulu that 

an action plan for getting the financial statements uploaded is in place. Mrs. Frances Danieli, 

GHURA’s Acting Controller, has just about finished her communications with HUD regarding 

the FY2019 financial statements. As soon as the FY2019 is completed, the other (2) statements 

should be easier to upload.  

Mr. Fitzgerald added that because of the situation with HUD, this resets the clock for GHURA. 

Unfortunately, because of the situation of HUD accepting GHURA’s financial statements, it will 

take GHURA (2) years to get to low-risk. GHURA must have (2) years without material findings 

to reach this. If GHURA can get past the hurdle with HUD and does the same next year as it did 

this year, it may be low risk. That is the goal.  

Chairman Rivera thanked Mr. Fitzgerald for his narrative of GHURA’s audit report and added 

that he understands and appreciates the complexities of the accounting challenges that GHURA 

faces.  

Mr. Fitzgerald indicated that GHURA’s audit is not just about financial statements but of the 

entire GHURA organization. It took everyone at GHURA to help complete the audit. And if there 

was a weak link anywhere, it would have affected the audit. It took all of GHURA’s people to 

make it work.  

There were no further discussions. 

3. [044/22] Intent of Award- Renovation of (6) Six Public Housing Units; 

IFB#GHURA-04-14-2022-AMPs 1,3, & 4 

 

Acting Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Bid opening for the project was held on May 12, 2022 at 2PM. 

• There was a total of (3) contractors that purchased bid specification 

packets. (3) contractors submitted a bid for Base Bid #1: 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 8 of 15 

 

1. Genesis Tech Corp.-submitted a bid for Base Bid #1 at $113,000. 

To renovate a total of (3) units-(2) in Mongmong and (1) in Agat.  

2. Surface Solution- submitted for Base Bid #1 at $158,046.53  

3. OH Construction- submitted for Base Bid#1 at $134,000 

• For Base Bid #2: 

1. Genesis Tech Corp.- submitted bid amount of $110,600 

2. Surface Solutions- submitted bid amount of $130,222.09 

3. OH Construction- submitted bid amount of $125,000 

 

 

• The Government estimates for Base Bid #1 was $124,574.03 and for Base 

Bid #2, $117,446. 

• Genesis Tech Corp. provided the lowest responsive and responsible bid 

for Base Bid #1 and Base Bid#2. 

• Genesis Tech Corp has completed major GHURA projects with good 

standing.  

• Genesis Tech Corp has also been cleared by Department of Labor 

compliance, OSHA, and EPLS. 

• Based on AE’s staff review and determination, GHURA is requesting 

approval to issue the contract to Genesis Tech Corp. for Base Bid #1 and 

Base Bid #2 in the total amount of $223,600.  

• Funding is available under the Capital Funds Program 

• Modernization of the units include electrical upgrades, replacement of 

termite infested kitchen cabinets and base, re-tiling of floors, sewer line 

replacement, painting of interior painting, exterior and interior door 

replacements, and replacement of existing water lines. 

• Detailed scope of work was included in bid documents for board review. 

Commissioner Sanchez inquired about who the point of contact was for Genesis Tech Corp. Mr. 

Sonny Perez, AE Manager, indicated that he believed Mr. Kim, first name not available, is the 

POC. Commissioner Sanchez asked if it was Mr. Young Chun Kim? Mr. Perez was not able to 

answer definitively.  

Chairman River inquired about whether the modernizations of the units all consisted of the 

same types of renovations as stated by Director Napoli. Mr. Perez confirmed this and stated 

that the process is usually requested by the asset property managers. AE assesses the facilities 

to verify the site conditions and review the scope of work required. Next step is to prepare and 

assemble the scopes of work and then the AE engineers put together the government 

estimates.  



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 9 of 15 

 

Chairman Rivera asked how often GHURA does sewer line and water line replacements. Mr. 

Perez indicated that it is dependent on the site location. Some AMP sites were built in the 70s, 

which means that some sewer lines are made of cast iron and are about to collapse.  Those 

units are the units that need sewer line and water line replacements.  

Ms. Taitano requested that Ms. Philly San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager, share her experiences of 

when she was a manager at AMP3. Ms. San Nicolas indicated that she has encountered a 

number of units at AMP3 rusted out. The only time a unit is up for renovations is when the unit 

is vacant. Chairman Rivera inquired about whether these upgrades were done at the most 

convenient of times for the residents. Ms. San Nicolas confirmed this.  

Commissioner Corpus added that at as a resident at the Dededo AMP site, he believed that 

across from the Public Health site and Dededo GHURA’s AMP 4, those lines may have been 

cleaned out a few times so they could possibly be cast iron pipes, as well.  

Vice Chair Guzman asked whether Genesis Tech Corp would be able to provide the manpower 

necessary to complete the projects. Are there any labor issues? Mr. Perez stated that there are 

no labor issues.  

Chairman Rivera inquired about whether GHURA should anticipate any shortages that may 

result in delays in project completions. Mr. Perez indicated that in the past the average cost of 

a renovation per unit was about $20-27,000/unit. Today, they average any where from $30-

37,000/unit. The costs to renovate has gone up. Unfortunately, the allotments to GHURA 

remain the same. GHURA may have to lessen the number of renovations done due to that 

reason.  In addition, skilled worker salaries have also gone up.  Currently the minimum salary 

for a carpenter is $15, whereas back in February the minimum salary was at $11. It is a 

significant increase that must be incorporated somewhere. To answer the Chairman’s question 

on whether GHURA projects will be streamlined moving forward, Mr. Perez stated that it 

depends on GHURA’s strategies and what projects GHURA decides to put its monies on. That 

decision will have to include the Board as much as executive management.  

There were no further discussions. 

[045/22] Vice Chair Guzman moved to approve Intent of Award- Renovation of (6) Six 

Public Housing Units: IFB#GHURA-04-14-2022-AMPs 1,3, & 4 to Genesis Tech Corp in 

the amount of $226,600 for Base Bid item #1 and Base Bid item #2. Commissioner Delia 

seconded. There were no objections. The motion passed.  

4. Request to Approve Change Order for the Inarajan Basketball Court 
 
[046/22] Director Napoli deferred to Mr. Sonny Perez, who requested to have 
the item and its discussions tabled due to the item still in review.  
 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 10 of 15 
 

5. Resolution No. FY2022-010- Resolution Approving the PHA Annual Plan 

(FY2023) and Capital Fund Program (CFP) Five-Year Action Plan (2022-

2026)  

Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Resolution No. FY 2022-010 us a resolution approving the Public 

Housing Authority’s Annual Plan FY2023 and Capital Fund Program’s 

Five-Year Action Plan for 2022-2026.  

• Pursuant to Section 511 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility 

Act (QHWRA) of 1998, GHURA is mandated to develop and submit a PHA 

Annual plan to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

• PHA annual plan is a comprehensive guide to the authorities, policies, 

programs, operations and strategies, and progress for meeting local 

housing needs and goals for implementation for the upcoming fiscal year 

• The CFP five year action plan describes the capital improvements to be 

undertaken within the five year period, the capital improvements are 

necessary activities to ensure long term physical and social viability of 

the PHAs public housing developments 

• The goals and objectives of the PHA annual plan FY 2023 and the Capital 

Fund program, five-year action plan 2022-2026 are consistent with 

Guam’s five-year Consolidated Plan, which identifies and prioritizes the 

household community development needs of Guam. 

• This plan was prepared in accordance with the PHA plan requirements 

of 24 CFR Part 903. 

• The Board of Commissioners of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal 

authority hereby approves a PHA annual plan FY 2023, beginning 

October 1, 2022 and the Capital Fund program Five-Year Action plan 

2022 -2026. 

• the five year annual PHA plan is to provide a ready source for interested 

parties to locate basic PHA policies, rules and requirements concerning 

the PHAs operations, programs, and services and informs HUD families 

served by the PHA and members of the public have the PHAs mission 

goals and objectives for serving the needs of low income, very low 

income, and extremely low income families. 

• GHURA is identified as a standard performer and PH standard 

performers must complete form 575-ST annually.  

• Public comment periods for both CFP Five-Year Action Plan and the 

FY2023 PHA Plan were conducted. There were no comments submitted 

during the period.  

• On pages 10-11 of the PHA Plan, indicated what revisions were made.  

These revisions were to deconcentration and other policies that govern 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 11 of 15 
 

eligibility selections and admission, rent determination, operation and 

management, grievance procedures, and pet policy.  

• No new activities for FY2023, information found on pages 12 & 13 

• Page 15 details the progress report in meeting the mission and goals in 

the PHA Five-year Action Plan and tables of occupancy levels 

Chairman Rivera inquired about whether the CFP Five-year Action Plan and the PHA Plan were 

templated documents. Ms. Philly San Nicolas confirmed that they are templated. Information 

regarding the activities for the past year and proposed activities for the upcoming year are 

inputted. The Capital Fund Program is also a templated document where information of 

activities that GHURA would like to have completed in the next 5 years is entered into the EPIC 

system 

Vice Chair Guzman referenced page 21 of 125 and asked about GHURA 250, Year 1, 2022, 

$782,000 and why the amount is much higher than Year 2. Ms. San Nicolas indicated that it all 

depends on the project that's being planned for that year. So basically, the $782,000 is the 

number of projects that we have planned. She wanted a drainage correction, so that would be 

an increase on the amount. Vice Chair Guzman indicated that this document had been brought 

before the board in the past and asked whether it will be brought before the board every or 

only on year five or unless revisions or corrections were made? Ms. San Nicolas stated that the 

board will see this plan every year because it is a rolling plan. Whatever is showing in 2022 

will be coming for next year, it will not be there, but it may be carried forward in year in 2023. 

The projects may show up again because it was not completed in 2022.  

Vice Chair Guzman inquired about how GHURA did in 2021. Ms. San Nicolas stated that GHURA 

addressed three projects, which were the site lighting at our elderly developments and are 

currently working on the basketball court, as well as a drainage correction. Those are current 

projects that have yet to be awarded. Vice Chair Guzman asked about whether GHURA is still 

in line with the projects that were approved in year 2021. Ms. San Nicolas confirmed that 

GHURA is still in line with what was approved by the board in year 2021. 

Chairman Rivera inquired about how well GHURA has been historically at meeting the plan 

deadlines. Ms. San Nicolas indicated that if the board is looking at the first year plan, she could 

basically say that GHURA has met it 75% of the time, there's a word called fund or fungibility 

where one project is taken in year five, for example, and move it over to year one, because of 

the urgency or the need. GHURA does follow the first year 75% of the time, but as long as the 

project is listed within the five years, it can moved back and forth.  Ms. San Nicolas also stated 

that a project not on the list cannot be addressed unless it is an emergency, and it goes out for 

public hearing comment, and has approval.  

Chairman Rivera inquired about whether there were plans that are not included in the 

document brought before the board. Ms. San Nicolas stated that she has (1) project which is a 

water blasting and roof coating project currently in public hearing. She added that she made a 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 12 of 15 
 

request to HUD to reject the plan so that she could include the project in the plan. If approved 

by HUD, this project will be listed in the revised plan. HUD had rejected the plan that was 

previously submitted so that the revision could be made. The revision has been made and is 

currently with HUD.  

Vice Chair Guzman asked whether the document brought before the board should read 

Revised Five-Year Plan or Original Five-Year Plan? Ms. San Nicolas stated that the document is 

the Original Five-Year Plan. She was advised by HUD that the plan will be approved once the 

additional project is added, and the Plan resubmitted.  

There were no further discussions. 

[045/22] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve Resolution No. FY 2022-010. 

Commissioner Corpus seconded the motion. Vice Chair Guzman asked whether the 

board would be seeing the Revised Five-Year Plan? Chairman Rivera indicated that for 

the sake of clarifications, all the revisions are contained within the document. Ms. San 

Nicolas confirmed that they are.  There were no objections. Motion passed.  

 

 V.    OLD BUSINESS 

1. Change Order Request for the Women’s Treatment Center 

 

[046/22] Mr. Sonny Perez stated the following: 

• Progress Pictures on the Women’s Treatment Center-  

-12 H2B workers arriving late July/early August 2022 

-Anticipating substantial completion by January 2023 

-Structural steel order affected by nearby global situation; may lead to    

 another change order.  

Vice Chair Guzman asked whether Buy America was on this project Mr. Perez stated that 

Structural Steel, yes and that some of the others may not.  

• the mechanical and the electrical changes have only increased about 17 to 23%, 

this is an acceptable increase amount. 

• Site improvement required that a new waste line be put in place 

• there was a requirement for an additional waistline to run to the backside of the 

facility; topography needed to be raised to do this; 43% cost increase 

• this included material, labor, and compliance 

• The change order is in the amount of $217,660 

 

Director Napoli added that it should be noted that the actions taken are going to be qualified 

as subject to the approval of reprogramming requests by HUD. 

 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 13 of 15 
 

Commissioner Ishizaki asked Mr. Perez if he had affected the change order yet. Mr. Perez stated 

that he had not. The numbers are set and the change order can be approved in concept, but 

numbers will not change.  

 

[047/22] Commissioner Delia moved to approve the Change Order to GHURA 09262019 

for the Light House Recovery Center for the Womens Treatment Center in the change 

order requests for the (3) divisions and OHP in the amount of $217,660, subject to the 

availability of funds. Commissioner Ishizaki seconded the motion. There were no 

objections by the other board members. Motion passed.  

 

2.  Change Order for the Sinajana Arts Center 

 

      Mr. Sonny Perez stated the following: 

• Progress pictures for the Sinajana Art Center- 

- an almost completed facility sans the walkway 

-the air conditioning has been installed 

-water and power are also connected 

• Mega United has received approved occupancy permit 

• Original waffling will be installed; contract extension is forthcoming 

• Installation of network to be done 

• Mayor Hofmann to locate funding for the second part of the additional 

walkway 

• Anticipating substantial completion for the interior work sometime late this 

month 

• AE staff and engineers are working on the punch list 

• Further inspection expected to close the construction, sans the walkway  

• Ribbon Cutting to be determined 

• CHANGE ORDERS: 

- Change Order Request from Mayor Hofmann- to help the community 

center Arts Hall to prepare, plan, and prevent this and future pandemics 

with air conditioners, HEPA filters, UV light sanitizers, air quality purifiers, 

extending expanding walkways to better accommodate social distancing, 

spacing as the public enters and exits the building and changing floor 

surfaces for easier sanitization.  

• Change Order amount is for $61,940 

-Change Order Request for a crane- this Change order was executed in 

November.  Due to COVID the owner, Mr. Zang, did not honor the old 

schedule and price. Crane was needed to install the double tees in the roof. 

New crane was obtained. Price of new crane was $12,000.  

• Change order amount is for $74,365. 

 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 14 of 15 
 

Director Napoli added that these change orders are also subject to the approval for the 

reprogramming of funds by HUD and subject to the availability of funds.   

 

Vice Chair Guzman asked if Mayor Hofmann locates the additional funding for the walkway 

will that require GHURA to extend the contract? Mr. Perez stated that GHURA may not have to 

extend the contract because it is a large amount. It may have to go out on a separate bid.  

 

[048/22] Vice Chairwoman Guzman motioned to approve the Change Order for the 

Sinajana Art Center in the amount of $74,365, subject to the availability of funds. 

Commissioner Delia seconded the motion. With no objections, the motion carried.   

 

VI. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

[049/22] Award of FSS Certificate of Completion to Mr. Karl Corpus- 
Director Napoli stated that Commissioner Corpus was awarded a Certificate of Completion in 
recognition for successfully completing the Family Self-Sufficiency Program contract of 
participation presented on May 20, 2022. Commissioner Corpus committed to this program 
for (5) years. Commissioner Corpus stated in the beginning, it was the lack of transportation 
that motivated him to go into the program. Different classes had to be completed. Along with 
help of the FSS program and planning and saving, he and his family were able to purchase 
vehicles. It puts us on the right track to being self-sufficient. Director Napoli congratulated 
Commissioner Corpus for completing his five-year program.  The BOC members also 
congratulated Commissioner Corpus and his family.  

 
[050/22] Commissioner Ishizaki requested that the Director Napoli present to the board an 
Executive Director’s Report for the next board meeting. Chairman Rivera acknowledged 
Commissioner Ishizaki’s request and requested that Director Napoli prepare to update the 
board on how specific items that have been brought up recently are being addressed.  

 
[051/22] Director Napoli stated that most of the issueshad to do with our community 
development programs. She stated that she will be meeting with the AE, Fiscal, and CPD 
teams to develop a Work Out Plan to present to Governor Leon Guerrero. She added that she 
will share information and updates as soon as the reports have been completed by the CPD 
team. 

 
[052/22] Chairman Rivera thanked Ryan Okahara, Laura Han, Jelani Madaraka, Jesse Wu, 
Mark Chandler, and Rebecca Borja and everyone at HUD for putting the Ethics Training 
together and the Deputy Director for arranging it on our end.  

 
[053/22] Chairman Rivera added that GHURA is working with GCC on Educational Bootcamps 
for workforce development. He added that this is a great partnership, and the innovation is 
that GCC is willing to bring the opportunity to the AMPs and assist at the ground level. Not 
only will this address transportation issues, but there will be other services available to 
benefit the residents, such as baby-sitting services for the participants that need it. He 
thanked the Executive Director and the GHURA team for their work in partnering with GCC 
to make this happen.  

 

 

 



 
Board Meeting Minutes of June 6, 2022                                                                                                Page 15 of 15 
 

Commissioners will attend the next scheduled GHURA BOC meeting via: 
 

   Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman               □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner                         □ Video Conference          □ In-person 

     Anisia Delia, Commissioner                              □ Video Conference           □ In-person  
     Nate Sanchez, Commissioner                           □ Video Conference           □ In-person  

   Emilia Rice, Commissioner                               □ Video Conference           □ In-person  
   Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner          □ Video Conference           □ In-person  

 
  Acknowledged by Chairman Rivera _______     Date: _________                                                                 

                                                                             

 

VII.   ADJOURNMENT   

       

[054/22] Commissioner Delia moved to adjourn the GHURA Board meeting of June 6, 
2022. Commissioners seconded the motion. With no objections, meeting adjourned 
at 2:11PM.  

 

 

 

 

             SEAL                                                                              

   

  

                                                                          

___________________________________________ 

                                                          ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

                                                Board Secretary / Acting Executive Director 

 

 



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

ATURIDAT GINIMA’ YAN RINUEBAN SUIDAT GUAHAN 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2022-TA-001 

 

 

Moved By:      Seconded By:_________________________ _______                                                          

 

Resolution authorizing off-island travel for the ROSS Service Coordinator to attend the 2022 National Service 

Coordinator Conference on August 14-17, 2022 in Anaheim, California. 

 

WHEREAS,    the Authority’s travel policy requires advance travel authorization by the Board of Commissioners for off-

island travel on the Authority’s business; and 

 

              WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners deemed appropriate for the ROSS Service Coordinator’s attendance to the 2022 

National Service Coordinator Conference in Anaheim, California from August 14-17, 2022; and 

 

WHEREAS, the training is to strengthen and improve the ROSS Service Coordinator’s skills and knowledge necessary 

to promote independent living among ROSS participants; and  

 

WHEREAS, the subject training request is an eligible expenditure under FY2021 ROSS NOFA and according to LOCCS, 

is sufficient funding available under the training budget line item; and be it 

 

RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners authorizes the use of the ROSS Service Coordinator Program Grant funds 

to finance the costs associated with travel and training, including registration fee, continuing education units, 

airfare, lodging, per diem, and ground transportation for an estimated total of $4,592.31, as indicated below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN A SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – JUNE 24, 2022. 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAINED: 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 

duly adopted by the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board of 

Commissioners on June 24, 2022.  

     

_________________________________________ 

ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

Secretary/Executive Director (Acting) 

DESCRIPTION ALINA L. BUTLER 

Registration Fee $865.00 

CEU $35.00 

Lodging (estimate) $1,508.76 

Airfare (estimate) $1,672.55 

Grounds Transportation $100.00 

M&IE $411.00 

Total: $4,592.31 

 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 1 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 2 of 29

 
 



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2022-011 

 

 

 

Moved By:       Seconded By:   

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WRITE-OFF OF TENANT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is the Guam public housing  

authority that provides decent homes and suitable living environments for Guam families of low 

income to afford to pay for safe, sanitary and decent dwelling accommodations; and  

 

 

WHEREAS, the governance and well-being of GHURA is vested in the Board of Commissioners (BOC) and 

empowered by 12 Guam Code Annotated, Chapter 5, Section 5104; and  

 

 

WHEREAS, BOC Resolution No. FY2018-002 Resolution Adopting the Write-Off Policy for Uncollectible 

Accounts for GHURA Rental Properties; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, in the normal course of business, the Authority is involved in transactions that result in monies 

being owed to GHURA for which they are unable to collect, and as necessary,  

 

 

WHEREAS, the Property Site Managers submit summaries of debts considered for write-off to prevent 

overstating of assets which are affecting the Authority’s financial performance; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, currently, GHURA's receivables include outstanding accounts, which have remained in 

GHURA's books for over 90 days as of March 31, 2022, as indicated below; and 

 

     AMP        Write-Off Amount 
 

1 $10,298.25 

2 $  7,210.98 

3 $11,946.26 

4 $24,512.96 
 

$53,968.45 

 

 

WHEREAS, GHURA, through the Property Site Managers, exert diligent collection efforts in pursuit of 

outstanding receivables, and although ongoing collection efforts are abandoned on these accounts, 

GHURA reserves the right and duty to collect should the opportunity arise; and 

 

 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 3 of 29

 
 



 
WHEREAS, it is in accordance with GHURA's procedure and good business practices to write-off accounts 

receivables after all reasonable collection procedures have been exhausted and there is not a 

reasonable expectation that the accounts will be collected; now, therefore be it  

 
 

RESOLVED, that the BOC approves writing off $53,968.45 of GHURA receivables after all reasonable 

collection procedures have been exhausted and there is not a reasonable expectation that the 

accounts will be collected. 

 
 

IN A SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM - JUNE 24, 2022 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAINED: 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct                      

copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing and 

Urban Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners on June 24, 

2022. 

(S E A L) 

 

                                                                        _________________________________________ 

        ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

                                    Board Secretary / Executive Director, Acting 

 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 4 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 5 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 6 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 7 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 8 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 9 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 10 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 11 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 12 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 13 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 14 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 15 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 16 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 17 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 18 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 19 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 20 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 21 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 22 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 23 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 24 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 25 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 26 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 27 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 28 of 29

 
 



 
Board Meeting of June 24, 2022

 
                    PAGE 29 of 29

 
 




